
Meeting papers

Pension Committee

Friday 1 July 2016 at 10.00 am

Meeting Room 6 - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:23 June 2016     

Pension Committee

Friday 1 July 2016 at 10.00 am

Meeting Room 6 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES Stephen Bace

2  MINUTES - (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 
2016

Stephen Bace

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Stephen Bace

4  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

To answer any written questions about matters that are within the powers 
and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the receipt of 
questions is 10.00am on 24 June 2016.

To answer any oral question(s) put by members of the public.

Depending on the nature of the oral questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which case 
a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible after the 
meeting.

Stephen Bace

5  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on 24 June 2016.

Stephen Bace



    

6  LGPS POOLING OF INVESTMENTS (Pages 7 - 10) Mark Spilsbury

7  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following agenda items, because it is likely that if 
members of the public were present there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public.

Cllr Ray 
Theodoulou

8  PROJECT BRUNEL SUBMISSION TO GOVERNMENT (Pages 11 - 126) Mark Spilsbury

9  WESTERN ASSET UPDATE (Pages 127 - 128) Mark Spilsbury

10  GMO UPDATE (Pages 129 - 140) Mark Spilsbury

11  COTSWOLD WATER PARK UPDATE (Pages 141 - 142) Mark Spilsbury

12  EXEMPT MINUTES 

To approve as a correct record the exempt minutes of the meetings 
held on 13 May 2016.

Stephen Bace

Membership –  Cllr David Brown, Cllr Jasminder Gill, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Lynden Stowe, 
Cllr Ray Theodoulou (Chairman) and Cllr Shaun Parsons

Added Members - Peter Clark

Co-Opted Member - Cllr Nigel Cooper

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

meeting, please contact:

Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204/fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

PENSION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Pension Committee held on Friday 13 May 2016 at the 
Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr David Brown
Cllr Jasminder Gill
Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Shaun Parsons

Cllr Lynden Stowe
Cllr Ray Theodoulou (Chairman)
Peter Clark

Substitutes:

Officers in attendance: Jo Walker, Graham Burrow, Stephen Bace, Sharon Crane and 
Mark Spilsbury

Apologies: Cllr Nigel Cooper

28. MINUTES 

The minutes were approved as a correct record.

29. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Cllr Brown made a non-prejudicial declaration as a member of Gloucester City Council. 

Cllr Hay made a non-prejudicial declaration as a member of Cheltenham Borough Council and as a 
trustee of Cheltenham Trust.

Cllr Theodoulou made a non-prejudicial declaration as a member of Cotswold
District Council.

Cllr Parsons made a non-prejudicial declaration as a member of Cotswold District Council.

Peter Clark declared that he was a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

30. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

No public questions had been received

31. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

No member questions had been received.

32. TRAINING UPDATE 

The committee received an update from Graham Burrow on the training that had 
taken place on 27th May which covered the role of Pension Regulator and the 
Breaches Policy. The slides from the session had been circulated.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Cllr Hay and Cllr Gill apologised for being unable to attend the session and 
welcomed the slides that had been provided. 

33. MARKET VALUATIONS AND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF THE 
FUND Q1 2016 

33.1 Sharon Crane introduced the report which showed the market values for 
each fund manager and their performance to date and since inception. She 
presented an amendment to the third sheet which showed a comparison of 
quarter 4 2015 with the first quarter. The value had changed and an 
adjustment had been made based on the rebalancing which was presented 
incorrectly on the original paper. 

33.2 In the last quarter the Fund’s value had increased by £28m with performance 
1.3% below the actual benchmark. This represented underperformance over 
the period, but 0.6% higher over 3 year rolling basis.

33.3 During discussion it was suggested that the lower returns were due to 
increased volatility. One member commented that emerging markets had 
begun to recover in quarter 1. 

33.4 One member suggested that it would be useful to have a noted within the 
report which outlined how much increase was needed each year to meet the 
demand on the Fund, something detailing the deficit and performance 
against that year on year. 

33.5 There was detailed discussion on what return the fund needed to make to 
reduce the deficit and the way in which investment returns and contributions 
affected that. It was commented that when thinking about future strategic 
asset allocations how active or passive management should be used. 

34. PENSION BOARD MINUTES 

34.1 The minutes from the Pension Board meeting on 22 April were provided for 
benefit of the Committee.

34.2 Graham Burrow explained that there had been a few items that the Board 
had wanted to flag up.

34.3 The Board had received the amended version of the Risk Register. The 
Board had suggested that the Committee may wish to add how the unitary 
proposals might impact the Fund and the impact of Project Brunel.  

34.4 The committee noted that these issues could be flagged up as emerging 
risks. 

 With regards to the Annual Benefit statement, the Board had asked officers 
to consider raising charges for late returns. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

 One member queried whether the Council was satisfied that other employers 
within the fund were backing up records. In response it was explained that 
officers were  satisfied with regards to large employers, but were not certain 
with regards to the smaller employers. A communication would be sent out 
reminded employers of the need to back up data.
ACTION Graham Burrow/ Mark Spilsbury

35. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

THAT in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, because it is likely 
that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act 
and the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public.

36. EXEMPT MINUTES 

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2016 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

37. PENSION ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

37.1 The committee were introduced to Alan Marshall who was the Administration 
Manager. The Committee noted that the Administration Report provided an 
update on Pension Administration Benchmarking, Pension Administration 
performance information and the position regarding the receipt of CARE 
reports from employers for the valuation and Annual Benefits Statements. 

38. 2016 VALUATION 

38.1 Julie West presented the 2016 Formal valuation of the Gloucestershire 
County Council Pension Fund.

RESOLVED

That the Pension Committee agreed with the assumptions.

It was noted that the staff representative indicated he was uncomfortable with 
the assumptions.

39. MINUTES OF SHADOW OVERSIGHT BOARD 

Cllr Ray Theodoulou provided members with an update. The Committee considered 
the minutes from the previous meeting of the Board. 

40. UPDATE ON FUND POOLING PROPOSALS 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Graham Burrow provided an update including the circulation of the draft suggested 
template for the July response to Government.

41. FEEDBACK FROM MANAGER MEETINGS 

RESOLVED

To agree to a switch in allocation of funds as suggested within the report in 
principle, subject to fee agreement and low transaction costs.

42. ADMISSION BODY REQUESTS 

The Committee were informed of four decisions taken under delegated powers. 

43. UPDATE ON RECOVERY ACTION 

RESOLVED

That the Committee approve the actions taken by officers.

44. WM ANNUAL FUND REVIEW 

Karen Thrumble updated members on the performance review for the periods to 
end March 2016. This would be the last report as State Street would no longer be 
providing performance measurement.

45. INVESTMENT UPDATE 

Steve Tyson provided members with an update ahead of the discussions with 
investment managers. He outlined the long term investment strategy and the further 
strategy considerations. 

46. INVESTMENT REPORT - STANDARD LIFE 

Standard Life  gave a presentation on their performance and set out their strategy 
going forward.

RESOLVED
That the presentation be noted.

47. INVESTMENT REPORT - GMO 

GMO gave a presentation on their performance and future strategy for 2016/17.

RESOLVED
That the presentation be noted.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 3.30 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Committee
1st July 2016

LGPS Pooling of Investments 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

1. Introduction

1.1. Following the Government’s announcement in the July 2015 
budget statement that they intended to work with Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administering authorities to 
ensure that they pool investments to significantly reduce costs, 
significant work has been undertaken to set up the Brunel Pension 
Partnership comprising ten LGPS Funds.

1.2. The Government required an initial response by 19th February 
2016, and a joint submission with the other nine Brunel funds was 
agreed by the Committee at its special meeting on 12th February 
2016. A further more detailed response is required to be submitted 
to Government by 15th July 2016. 

1.3. Members of the Pension Fund Committee and Local Pension 
Board received a presentation on the Brunel proposal and were 
given the opportunity to ask questions and provide input at the 
training/briefing event held on12th June.

1.4. The original Government requirement for the July submission was 
that it should include both a joint submission from the pool and 
also an individual submission from each LGPS fund. However the 
Government has changed its requirement such that only the joint 
submission from the pool is now required. The Committee is 
therefore asked to approve the joint submission from the Brunel 
Pension Partnership, the draft of which is attached to this paper.

1.5. This draft is being considered by a meeting of the Chief Financial 
Officers from each of the administrating authorities, and by a 
meeting of the Brunel Oversight Board in advance of the 1st July, 
and any changes made to the submission following these 
meetings will be reported back to the Committee on 1st July.

2. Key Points

2.1 A template for the submission has been put together by the Local 
Government Association in conjunction with the Department of 
Communities and Local Government and HM Treasury. The 
requirement is that the following issues should be addressed 
through the completion of the template:

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 The LGPS Funds participating in the pool.

 The governance structure of the pool. Feedback from the 
Secretary of State made it clear that the pool structure needs 
to be an entity regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
To fulfil this requirement it is proposed to set up a company 
in which Gloucestershire County Council would be a 
shareholder. This will need Council approval.

 The business model, including shared principles, 
accountability, decision making and reporting.

 The timetable for establishing the pool and moving assets 
into the pool.

 A detailed estimate of current investment costs, transition 
and implementation costs for the pool and an estimate of 
savings over the next 15 years.

 The ambition of the pool to increase investment in 
infrastructure. This can only be stated in terms of an 
ambition, and it will remain up to the individual funds to 
determine their asset allocation.

2.2 The joint submission outlining the response to these issues has been 
prepared in consultation with the other Brunel Fund authorities, the draft 
of which is attached to this paper.

3. Conclusion

3.1 The Committee will be asked to approve the joint submission of 
the Brunel Pension Partnership and to recommend the County 
Council to approve in principle the establishment of a Local 
Authority Company with the other Brunel founder funds, in which 
Gloucestershire County Council will own 10% of the shares (i.e. 
each participating LGPS fund will own an equal share).

Recommendations:

(a) that the Committee endorses the joint submission from the Brunel Pension 
Partnership, including the Gloucestershire Pension Fund;

(b) that the Committee formally recommends the Council to agree, in principle, 
to the establishment of a Local Authority Company with the other Brunel 
founder funds, in which Gloucestershire County Council will own 10% of the 
shares.

Page 8



(c) that, consequently,  the Strategic Finance Director be authorised to continue 
negotiating as necessary  with other Fund Members on the detail of the 
proposition and, in consultation with the Chairman of the Pension Fund 
Committee, to agree the terms of any final agreement, reporting back to this 
Committee in the normal manner; 

(d) that the Head of Legal Services be authorised to execute all necessary legal 
documents or formal agreements required to be agreed by the Council to 
give effect to the proposals concluded in line with the above.

Contact Officers:

Mark Spilsbury 01452 328920
Graham Burrow 01452 328944

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 127

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 141

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes -
	6 LGPS Pooling of Investments
	8 Project Brunel Submission to Government
	26_BPP proposal Annex 01 - BPP high level structure diagram
	27_BPP proposal Annex 02 - Stage 3 Timetable and reporting
	28_BPP proposal Annex 03 - Stage 4 Timetable and reporting
	29_BPP proposal Annex 04 - Sample status report
	30_BPP proposal Annex 05 - Cost sharing Principles
	31_BPP proposal Annex 06 - Reporting and monitoring framework
	32_BPP proposal Annex 07 - Likeminded criteria
	33_BPP proposal Annex 08 - Investment Principles
	34_BPP proposal Annex 09 - Memorandum of Understanding
	35_BPP proposal Annex 10 - External reporting and benchmarking
	36_BPP proposal Annex 11 - Transition cost assumptions from RI
	37_BPP proposal Annex 12 - Infrastructure

	9 Western Asset Update
	10 GMO Update
	Gloucestershire Pension Committee letter - 14 June 2016

	11 Cotswold Water Park Update

